Lake Central High School KAY TRAPP BOARD ROOM – Enter Door E 8400 Wicker Avenue, St. John, Indiana 46373 Monday, June 19, 2017 at 7:30 p.m.

A meeting of the Board of School Trustees of the Lake Central School Corporation was held in the LGI Room at Lake Central High School, 8410 Wicker Avenue, St. John, IN on June 19, 2017. The meeting began at 7:30 p.m.

Board Members Present

Don Bacso, Vice-President Janice Malchow, President Howard Marshall, Board Members Cindy Sues, Board Member Board Members Not Present Sandy Lessentine, Secretary

Administration Present

Sarah Castaneda, Director of Secondary Education Al Gandolfi, Assistant Superintendent Becky Gromala, Director of Special Education Rob James, Director of Business Services Bill Ledyard, Director of Facilities Theresa Schoon, Director of Primary Education Dr. Lawrence Veracco, Superintendent Administration Not Present
Rick Moreno, Director of Technology

SCHOOL BOARD MEETING MINUTES Monday, June 19, 2017

All Motions Were Passed With a 4-0 Vote Unless Otherwise Indicated

- I. | Call to Order *Janice Malchow*
 - The Board Meeting was called to order at 7:30 p.m. and Pledge of Allegiance led by Board President, Janice Malchow.
- II | Agenda: Approval, Deletions, Additions Dr. Veracco- Action Required
 - Revisions to the Agenda include a revised personnel packet under Mr. Gandolfi's section.
 - Don Bacso moved to approve the Revised Agenda. Howard Marshall seconded the motion. Motion carried.
- III | Correspondence Sandy Lessentine
 - There was no correspondence.
- IV | Liaison Committee Updates *Janice Malchow*
 - 1. West Lake Joint Managing Board: Howard Marshall: Next meeting late September.
 - 2. Dyer Parks Department: Don Bacso: New fence by Northgate Park.
 - 3. Personnel Interview Committee: Howard Marshall
 - 4. Legislative Committee: Janice Malchow
 - 5. Lake Central Education Foundation: Janice Malchow
 - 6. Wellness Committee: Janice Malchow: Correction from last meeting, meant to refer to Administrative Regulation regarding wellness rather than Board Policy.
 - 7. Dollars for Scholars: Cindy Sues
 - 8. Dyer Redevelopment Committee: Don Bacso
 - 9. St. John Redevelopment Committee: Cindy Sues
 - 10. Schererville Redevelopment Committee: Sandy Lessentine

LAKE CENTRAL SCHOOL CORPORATION Lake Central High School KAY TRAPP BOARD ROOM – Enter Door E 8400 Wicker Avenue, St. John, Indiana 46373 Monday, June 19, 2017 at 7:30 p.m.

V	 Official School Board Business Topics: Consent Agenda – Dr. Veracco – Action Required Howard Marshall moved to approve the Consent Agenda. Cindy Sues seconded the motion. Motion carried. 			
	 A. Approval of Minutes: June 5, 2017 Executive Session June 5, 2017 Regular Meeting 			
	 B. Approval of Claims, Payroll and Extracurricular Expenditures Janice Malchow asked what the purchase for a seat license was about. Janice Malchow asked about the \$6,636 charge for professional development. Janice Malchow asked about charge for locks for nurse's office at Bibich. 			
VI	Public Comments Regarding Action Items • There were none.			
VII	Official School Board Business Topics: Regular Agenda			
	 A. Superintendent – <i>Dr. Veracco</i> Recognition: LCHS Boys Track: The boys track team competed in the state finals on June 2, 2017. The boys relay team placed 5th in the 4 x 100 meter relay. The following people competed in this event: Tony Pavloski, Josh Benson, Keon Sellers, Tony Pavloski and Anthony Giles. Tony Pavloski also qualified for the 100 meter dash and 200 meter dash, while Michael Taylor qualified for discus. Head Coach: Jeff Rhody. Asst Coach: Darrell Tinner. Asst Coach: Garret Gray. LCHS Girls Track: The girls track team competed in the state finals on June 3, 2017. The following girls were state qualifiers for the 4x800 meter relay: SydneyVandersteeg, Sarah Hunsley, Ellie Keith, Jennifer Crague, Sarah Ramos. Destiny Washington also qualified for the 100 meter hurdles and 300 meter hurdles. Coach: Jeff Rhody. Asst Coach: Amanda Pritt. Asst Coach: Nolan Pettis. Corporation Wellness Administrative Regulation – Review Amendments Howard Marshall asked who comes up with the suggestions for these Regulations. Don Bacso commented that the Regulation is very thorough. 			

LAKE CENTRAL SCHOOL CORPORATION **Lake Central High School** KAY TRAPP BOARD ROOM - Enter Door E 8400 Wicker Avenue, St. John, Indiana 46373 Monday, June 19, 2017 at 7:30 p.m.

DRAFT AS OF 6/7/17 Proposed for June 30, 2017 deadline

ADMINISTRATIVE REGULATION

Wellness, Physical Activity and Nutrition

Philosophy: The Board of School Trustees of The Lake Central School Corporation support the health and well-being of the School corporation's students by promoting nutrition and physical activity at all grade levels. Therefore, in accordance with the Child Nutrition and WIC Reauthorization Act and the Healthy, Hunger-Free Kids Act, it is the goal of the Board to:

Therefore, in accordance with the child Nutrition and WIC Reauthorization Act and the Healthy, Hunger-Free Kids Act, it is the goal of the Board to:

Statement of Purpose; Provide students access to healthy foods and beverages; provide opportunities for developmentally appropriate physical activity, and require that all medies served by the school corporation meet or exceed the federal nutritional guidelines issued by the U.S. Department of Agriculture. A Coordinated School Health Advisory Council be Formed and maintained to oversee these activities.

I. Coordinated School Healthy Advisory Council
The Lake Central School Corporation will engage students, parents/gaardians, teachers, food service professionals, health professionals, and other interested community members in developing, implementing, monitoring, and reviewing opporation will engage students, parents/gaardians, teachers, food service professionals, health Advisory Council will be formed and maintained at the corporation level to oversee the development, implementation and evaluation of the school corporation's wellness policy and specific activities to this Administration Regulation. A Wellness Committee will perform a bulk of the activities related to wellness, physical activities and nutrition. A student exitylyritarmunal committee will perfor the bulk of the planning and implementation of student specific activities.

In accordance with Indians dece 20-69-18, and the healthy, Hunger Free Kids Act of 2010 (HHFAA), the school corporation will form and maintain a corporation level Coordinated School Health Advisory Council that includes at least the following:

- that includes at least the following:

 - Food Service Directors and Staff

 - School Health Professionals/Registered Dietitians
 Physical Education Teachers
 Family and Consumer Science Teachers
 School Board Members
 School Administrators

Other potential members of the council include teachers, additional school nurses, teaching assistants, and community representatives such as recreation professionals, city planners, industry professionals, and voluntan service workers.

8. The Wellness Committee shall meet frequently to review nutrition and physical activity policies and to develog goals and action plans for the council shall meet as needed during the school year to discuss implementation of activities, address darriers, challenges, successes and results.

C. The Advisory Council shall report annually to the Superintendent and School Board on the implementation of the wellness policy and include any recommended changes or revisions.

D. The School Board will adopt or revise nutrition and physical activity policies based on recommendations made by the Advisory Council.

- nade by the Advisory Council.
- E. The School Wellness Policy and Administration Regulation related to Wellness, Physical Activity and Nutrition shall be made available to students and families by means of the online registration process and the corporation's website.

II. Nutrition Education

Nutrition topics shall be integrated within the comprehensive health education curriculum K-12 and taught according to the standards of the Indiana Department of Education resulting in students gaining knowled and skills to make healthy lifestyle choices. Schools will link nutrition education activities and/or physical activities with existing coordinated school health programs or other comparable comprehensive school

- Nutrition education of healthy eating will be provided as part of a Comprehensive Health Education
- Program.

 1. Health education will be taught by a licensed educator, grades K-12.

 2. The school corporation will provide nutrition education training opportunities to teachers and staff for
- The school corporation will provide nutrition education training opportunities to teachers and staff for all grade levels.
 Nutrition education will include lessons that cover topics such as how to read and use food labels, choosing healthy options, media awareness, menu planning, and portion control; food choice guidance can come from Choose MyPlate.
 School staff will collaborate with community groups and organizations to provide opportunities for student projects related to nutrition (e.g. reading food labels, and maintaining a caloric balance between food imake and physical activity/exercise).
 Nutrition education resources with the provided for parents/quardisact through handours website links
- tood intake and physical activity; exercise;
 Nutrition education resources will be provided to parents/guardians through handouts, website links, school newsletters, presentations and any other appropriate means available to reach
- 6. Nutrition educators will partner with school staff of the school food service program to use the cafeteria
- Nutrition educators will partner with school staff of the school food service program to use the cafeter
 as a learning lab. Healthy tense, such as salads, sepetables and fruits, will be displayed prominently in
 cafeterias to make healthier choices more appealing.
 A nutrient analysis of all food and beverage items served is made available on the corporation web site,
 placed in nurses' offices and/or with the nutritional coordinator for monitoring students' consumption
 of nutrient intake and ensure the offering healthy foods.
 Foods of minima nutritional value, including brands and illustrations, shall not be advertised or
 marketed in educational materials.

Schools will link nutrition promotion activities with existing coordinated school health programs or other comparable comprehensive school health promotion frameworks. The promotion will occur through:

- A. The entire school environment, not just the classroom, shall be aligned with healthy school goals to positively influence a student's understanding, beliefs, and habits as they relate to good nutrition and
- positively influence a student surflex straining, centers, and makes as mey related to good intuition and regular physical activity.

 Consistent nutrition messages throughout schools, classrooms, gymnasiums, and cafeterias. (i.e. posters, bulletin boards and morning announcements. (See Goal IX.)
- C. Implementing at least ten or more evidence-based healthy food promotion techniques through the school
- meal programs using <u>Smarter Lunchroom techniques</u>, and

 D. Ensuring 100% of foods and beverages promoted to students meet the USDA Smart Snacks in School nutrition standards. Additional promotion techniques that the District and individual schools may use are available at http://www.foodplanner.healthiergeneration.org.
- Includes enjoyable, developmentally-appropriate, culturally-relevant and participatory activities, such as cooking demonstrations, lessons, statis-testing, farm visits.
 Other best practice promotion materials that are implemented are:
- - Team Nutrition Nutrition Promotion Materi Core Nutrition Messages (May 2014) USDA. FNS
 - Food and Beverage Marketing
 - Taste Testing and Evaluating Recipes

 - Family Fun, Food, and Fitness Event Planning Guide (August 2014 KSDE Child Nutrition and

IV. Standards for USDA Child Nutrition Programs and School Meals

The Lake Central School Corporation will provide and promote the National School Lunch and Breakfast Programs to ensure that all students have access to healthy foods to support healthier choices and promote

- 1. Meals served through the National School Lunch and Breakfast Programs will:

 - Be appealing and appetizing to children;
 Meet, at minimum, the nutrition requirements established by the USDA for federally funded programs;
 - Contain 0 percent trans fats;
 - · Offer a variety of fruits and vegetables;

- . 100% of the grains offered are whole grain-rich
- 2. All cooked foods will be baked or steamed. Proper procurement procedures and preparation methods will be used to decrease excess fat, calorie and sodium levels in food.

 3. Schools are encouraged to purchase or obtain fresh fruits and vegetables from local farmers when
- practical.
- Students will have the opportunity to provide input on local, cultural and ethnic favorites.
- The food services department shall provide periodic food promotions that will allow for taste testing
 of new healthier foods being introduced on the menu.
- 6. Special dietary needs of students will be considered when planning meals, according to the
- Special detaily lifectory is students with the consideration with planning means, according to the
 document Accommodating Children with Special Dietary Needs in the School Nutrition Programs.
 The food service department will share and publicize information about the nutritional content of
 meals with students and parents/guardians. The information will be available in a variety of forms that can include handouts, the school website, articles, school newsletters, presentations that focus on nutrition and healthy lifestyles, and through any other appropriate means available to reach
- 8. Promote healthy food and beverage choices using at least ten of the following Smarter Lunchroom
 - chniques:

 Whole fruit options are displayed in attractive bowls or baskets (instead of chaffing dishes or hotel pans).

 Sliced or cut fruit is available daily.

 Daily fruit options are displayed in a location in the line of sight and reach of students.

 All available vegetable options have been given creative or descriptive names.

 All available vegetable options are bundled into all grab and go meals available to students.

 All staff members, especially those serving, have been trained to politely prompt students to select and consume the daily vegetable options with their meal.

 White milk is placed in front of other beverages in all coolers.

- Alternative entrée options (e.g., salad bar, yogurt parfaits, etc.) are highlighted on posters or signs within all service and dining areas.
- . A reimbursable meal can be created in any service area available to students (e.g., salad bars, snack rooms, etc.).
- Student surveys and taste testing opportunities are used to inform menu development, dining
- space decor and promotional ideas.

 Student artwork is displayed in the service and/or dining areas.
- student artwork is displayed in the service analyor oliming areas.

 Bully announcements are used to promote and market menu options.

 Menus will be posted on the District website or individual school websites, and will include nutrient content and ingredients.

 Menus will be created/reviewed by a Registered Dietitian or other certified nutrition professional.

- professional.

 School meals are administered by a team of child nutrition professionals.

 The District child nutrition program will accommodate students with special dietary needs.

 Students will be allowed at least 10 minutes to eat breakfast and at least 20 minutes to eat lunch, counting from the time they have received their meal and are seated (meets Healthy Schools Program Gold-level criteria).

 Students are served lunch at a reasonable and appropriate time of day.

Lake Central High School

KAY TRAPP BOARD ROOM - Enter Door E

8400 Wicker Avenue, St. John, Indiana 46373 Monday, June 19, 2017 at 7:30 p.m.

- Lunch will follow the recess period to better support learning and healthy eating.

 Participation in Federal child nutrition programs will be promoted among students and families to help ensure that families know what programs are available in their children's school.

 The District will implement at least four of the following five Farm to School activities.

 Local and/or regional products are incorporated into the school meal program;

 Messages about agriculture and nutrition are reinforced throughout the learning environment;

 School notis field trips to local Erms; and

 School voltilizes promotions or special events, such as tastings, that highlight the local/ regional products.

- B. School Meal Participati

 - To the extent possible, schools will provide the USDA School Breakfast Program to all students.

 To the extent possible, schools will utilize methods to serve school breakfasts that encourage participation, including serving breakfast and arranging transportation schedules to allow for earlier
- - ratimes and Screenumg.
 Adequate time will be provided to students to eat lunch (at least 20 minutes after being served) and breakfast (at least 10 minutes after being served).
 School meals will be served in clean pleasant settings.

 - Students will have convenient access to hand-washing and sanitizing stations.
 Water: Potable (drinking) water must be readily available at all mealtimes.
- - Professional Development 1

 Professional Development and training will be provided at least annually to food service managers and staff on proper food handling techniques and healthy cooking practices.

 All school nutrition program directors, managers and staff will meet or exceed hiring and annual continuing education/training requirements in the <u>ISDA professional standards for child nutrition professionals</u>. These school nutrition personnel will refer to USDA's Professional Standards.

V. Nutrition Standards for Competitive and Other Foods and Beverages
The Lake Central School Corporation will provide and allow foods and beverages that support proper
nutrition and promote healthy choices that will meet up to 50% of the USDA Nutrition Standards in vending

- machines, school stores and concession stands.

 A. Approved Nutrition Standards, based on the nutrition standards of the Institute of Medicine (2007) and the standards of the USDA Smart Snacks.

 1. K-12 a la carte, school vending machines and other foods outside of school meals shall be limited.
 - - . No more than 30 percent of total calories from fat,

- No more than 35 percent of calories from total sugars
- No more than 200 milligrams of sodium per portion as packaged,
 No more than 200 calories per package, and
- 100 percent of the grains offered are whole grain-rich
- 2. K-12 a la carte, school vending machines and other beverages outside of school meals shall be
 - · Water without flavoring, additives, or carbonation,
 - Low-fat and nonfat milk (in 8-to 12-ounce portion)
 - 100% fruit juice in 4-ounce portions as packaged for elementary/middle school and 8 ounces (2 portions) for high school, and
- · All beverages other than water, white milk or juice shall be no larger than 12 ounces.
- B. Availability
- 1. A vending machine at an elementary school that dispenses food or beverage items may not be accessible to students.

 2. Vending machines in middle and high schools
- - · Will not be available during mealtimes Will be off before school and turned on 30 minutes after school

 - . Will contain items that meet at least 50% of the approved nutrition standards.
- Vending machines for school staff will not be accessible to students
- During the Breakfast and Lunch Programs food and beverages will not be sold or given in school
- 5. Students and staff will have free, potable (drinking) water for consumption available in water
- C. Concession Stands
- 1. The concession items sold at school-sponsored events to participants, fans and visitors shall include at least 50 percent healthy beverages and foods, according to the approved nutrition standards D. Classroom Celebrations
- 1. Schools shall inform parents/guardians of the classroom celebration guidelines and supply a list of
- allergies to avoid when applicable.

 Classroom celebrations will be permitted during Halloween, Christmas and Valentine's Day and
- student birthdays. A fourth celebration, Ethnic Day, at elementary will be permitted as long as it is related to a lesson or citizenship activity at the school. This celebration may differ for each grade level and for each school. All other celebrations will focus on activities (e.g., giving free time, extra recess, music and reading time) rather than on food.
- Classroom celebrations should make a positive contribution to children's diets and health with an
 emphasis on serving fruits and vegetables as the primary snacks and water as a the primary beverage. All food and beverages items will need to be store bought and left in original sealed

- Teachers and staff will discourage using food as a reward. For example, the use of sugar-sweetened beverages or candy as a classroom reward at any school is not appropriate.
 School staff will not withhold food or drink at mealtimes as punishment.
- F. Fundraisers
 - 1. Fundraising activities will support healthy eating and wellness. Schools will promote the sale of non-food items for school-sponsored fundraising. For a food or beverage item to be sold as a fundraiser during the school day, it must meet the approved nutritional standards.
- 2. Fundraisers need not meet the approved nutritional standards if the food or beverage is being consumed 30 minutes or more after the school day or away from school grounds

VI. Physical Activity and Physical Education

Lake Central supports the health and well-being of students by promoting physical activity through physical education, recess and other physical activity breaks; before-and after-school activities; and walking and bicycling to school. Additionally, Lake Central supports physical activity among elementary students by providing them with at least 30 of the recommended 60 minutes of physical activity per day.

A. Physical Education K-12

- 1. Physical Education will enable students to acquire the knowledge and skills necessary to maintain
- physical fitness, participate in physical activities and make healthy life style choices.

 All students grades K-4 will receive 45 minutes per week of physical education. All students 5-8 will receive physical education 125 minutes per week. All students in grades 9-12 will participate in physical education in order to meet the Physical Education Standards and graduation requirements.
- The high school counselors will encourage students to take elective physical education classes.

 3. The physical education program will provide adequate space and equipment to ensure quality physical education classes for students.

 4. Physical education will be taught by a certified physical education instructor.
- (Goal: See IX B 1 and 2)
- (court. see No. 1, and 2).

 All staff involved in physical education will be provided opportunities for professional development focusing on physical activity, fitness, health, and wellness.

 Lake Central School Corporation does not permit students to substitute other school or community
- activities for physical education class time or credit in place of the required physical education
- - Lake Central School Corporation is developing a culture of physical activity.
 - Lake Central School Corporation sponsors intramural activities for students grades 9-12.
 Lake Central School Corporation provides facilities to community organizations that offer intramural
 - activities for students in grades 1-12.

 Lake Central School Corporation offers a wide variety of athletic camps during the summer for
- students in grades 1-12.
- C. Daily Recease and Physical Activity Breaks
 Each elementary school shall provide daily physical activity via scheduled recess in accordance with Indiana Code 20-30-5-7.5.
 - 2. All teachers will be encouraged to use physical activity breaks when possible.

D. Physical Activity and Remedial Activities/Punishment
S. School staff will not use physical activity (e.g., running laps, pushups) or withhold opportunities for physical activity (e.g. reces, physical education) as punishment.

E. Walking and Bicycling to School

Where appropriate and safe; schools will allow walking and bicycling to school

2. The school corporation will explore the availability of both local and federal funds (e.g. Safe Routes to School funds administered by the Indiana Department of Transportation) to supp ernment in improving safe routes to school.

Lake Central School supports the health and well-being of our staff by creating and promoting policy and environmental supports to provide physical activity and healthy eating opportunities.

A. Nutrition and Physical Activity

1. The school corporation will promote programs to increase knowledge of physical activity and

- healthy eating for faculty and staff.
- The school corporation's benefits department will work with local fitness centers to offer reduced membership fees.
- inemiors mp tee.

 Lake Central School Corporation has scheduled a walking program which will allow staff and community members to use the high school facility outside of school hours from November 1 through April 30.

 Staff will be encouraged to participate in community walking, bicycling or running events which will
- be promoted through the Wellness Committee invitations and emails
- be promoted through the Wellness Committee invitations and emails.

 5. At least 50 percent of the food options available at staff meetings will meet the approved nutrition standards. During meetings lasting longer than one hour, staff will have the opportunity to stretch and be physically active.

 6. Schools will promote breastfeeding by making reasonable efforts to provide a private location for employees to express breast milk, in accordance with Indiana Code 22-2-14-1.

 7. The school corporation engages in various competitive activities that recognizes and awards staff for participating and accomplishing physical activity goals.

participating and accomplishing physical activity goals.

Other School Based Activities
The District will coordinate and integrate other initiatives related to physical activity, physical education, nutrition, and other wellness components. All efforts are complementary, not duplicative, and work towards the same goals and objectives: promoting student well-being, optimal development and strong educational outcomes.

A. The school corporation supports the development of farm to school programs with these objectives:

Encourage students to act nutritious foods
Encourage students are active to the school program of the school programs with these objectives:

Encourage students to visit local farms
Encourage students to visit local farms

- B. School supports culinary professionals coming to the schools educate on nutritional food preparation for
- IX. 2017-2018 Goals

LAKE CENTRAL SCHOOL CORPORATION Lake Central High School KAY TRAPP BOARD ROOM - Enter Door E 8400 Wicker Avenue, St. John, Indiana 46373

Monday, June 19, 2017 at 7:30 p.m.

- A. Goal #1 All Lake Central School Corporation schools will educate students and staff regarding the
- A. Goal # 1 All Lake Central School Corporation schools will educate students and staff regarding the nutritional value of commonly consumed foods and beverages. These nutritional facts will be gathered from USDA sites and delivered weekly via our regular student and staff announcements.
 B. Goal # 2 The Lake Central School Corporation schools in an effort to determine all activities to support healthy living will collect specific data from principals and physical education teachers.
 1. The Lake Central School Corporation will collect specific data from all physical education teachers in order to create a uniform academic delivery of classroom lessons on healthy living. These lessons will be delivered in all grade level appropriate physical education classes.
 2. The Lake Central School Corporation School will collect specific data from principals in order to create a uniform academic delivery of classroom lessons on agriculture. Additionally, principals will compile a list of all club and extracurricular activities related to our environment. The best if these lessons and activities will be considered for implementation on a greater scale.

Lake Central School Corporation is committed to enforcing the guidelines included in this document Through implementation of the Weliness, Physical Activity and Nutrition regulations, the corporation will create an environment that supports opportunities for physical activity and healthy eating behaviors. This commitment will be evaluated by:

- A. The Advisory Council will assess the implementation of these guidelines every two years. of policy implementation every two years.
- B. An annual progress about each schools' wellness related activities will be evaluated and shared with the
- C. The District Advisory Council will revise these guidelines as needed

in accordance with Federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil rights regulations and policies, the USDA, its Agencies, offices, and employees, and institutions participating in or administering USDA programs are prohibited from discriminating based on race, color, national origin, sex, disability, age, or reprisal or retaliation for prior civil rights activity in any program or activity conducted or funded by USDA.

Persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication for program information (e.g. Braille, large print, audicitape, American Sign Language, etc.), should contact the Agency (State or local) where they applied for benefits. Individuals who are deaf, final of hearing or have speech disabilities may contact USAD through the Federal Relay Service at (800) 877-8339. Additionally, program information may be made available in languages other than English.

To file a program complaint of discrimination, complete the <u>USDA Program Discrimination Complaint Form</u>, (AD-3027) found online at: https://www.nscr.usda.gov/complaint_filina_cust.html, and at any USDA office, or write a letter addressed to USDA and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form. To request a copy of the complaint form, call (866) 632-9992. Submit your completed form or letter to USDA by:

mail: U.S. Department of Agriculture Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights 1400 Independence Avenue, SW Washington, D.C. 20250-9410;

3. Board Compensation – Action Required

0144.1 Compensation

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of School Trustees of Lake Central School Corporation, that each of its Board members, with the exception of the West Lake Special Education Liaison member, shall receive a per diem payment of \$112.00 per Board meeting (public meeting during which the Board takes action as defined in I.C. 20-26-4-7) and ouring which the Board takes action as defined in I.C. 20-26-4-7) and sixty-two dollars (\$62.00) per committee meeting with a maximum sum total per calendar year of \$10,000. The board shall also receive a one-time payment of \$62 for attending the high school graduation ceremony. Any Board member approved at the organizational meeting in January to serve as a board liaison to other community groups shall receive a per diem payment of sixty-two dollars (\$62.00) per meeting which may result in supposition the programments. in surpassing the maximum sum total per calendar year of \$10,000.

DULY ADOPTED by the Board of School Trustees of the Lake Central School Corporation this 19th day of June 2017.

I.C. 20-26-4-7

The following guidelines have been established by the Board to ensure appropriate and proper reimbursement of expenses for Board members

- Expenses will be reimbursed only for activities authorized by the
- В Reimbursement for mileage will not exceed the current rate established for Corporation employees.
- Attendance at Board-approved conferences should be at the location closest to the Corporation. C
- When attending a Board-approved conference, all fees, parking mileage, meals, and lodging will be reimbursed. D.
- When the Board attends a community or school-related event as a Board function, or if a Board member attends as the designated representative of the Board, any incurred expenses, including mileage, will be reimbursed by the Board. If a Board member attends such events as a private citizen, any incurred expenses are to be paid by the Board member.
- No entertainment expenses or purchases of alcoholic beverages are reimbursable.
- A voucher detailing the amount and nature of each expense must be submitted to the Board for approval within sixty (60) days after

the expenses have been incurred

Lake Central High School

KAY TRAPP BOARD ROOM – Enter Door E

8400 Wicker Avenue, St. John, Indiana 46373

Monday, June 19, 2017 at 7:30 p.m.

	Monday, June 19, 2017 at 7:30 p.m.
	Howard Marshall moved to approve. Cindy Sues seconded the motion. Motion carried.
B.	Assistant Superintendent / Personnel – <i>Al Gandolfi</i>
	1. Revised Personnel Recommendations – Action Required
	I. Certified Retirements, Resignations and Appointments:
	A. Retirements:
	1. Laurel Bankroff, Guidance Counselor, Lake Central High School
	(effective June 13, 2017; 19 years of dedicated service).
	B. Resignations:
	1. Kristen Kerns, Grade 4 Teacher, Homan Elementary School
	(effective June 9, 2017).
	2. Kristen Hankins, Grade 3 Teacher, Kolling Elementary School
	(effective June 15, 2017).
	3. Frank Zaremba, Dean of Students, Lake Central School Corporation
	(effective June 16, 2017).
	C. Appointments:
	1. Jerusha Niebling (Crown Point), Grade 5 Teacher, Grimmer Middle School
	(effective August 11, 2017).
	2. Lauren Bridgeman (Schererville), Grade 5 Teacher, Clark Middle School
	(effective August 11, 2017).
	3. Alex Thompson (Dyer), Science Teacher, Clark Middle School
	(effective August 11, 2017).
	4. April Weisman (LaPorte), Spanish/English Teacher, Lake Central High School
	(effective August 11, 2017).
	5. Kirstie Keller (Valparaiso), Art Teacher, Protsman Elementary School
	(effective August 11, 2017).
	6. Melissa Tamayo (Dyer), Elementary Teacher, Homan Elementary School
	(effective August 11, 2017).
	7. Christina Miljevic (Schererville), Elementary Teacher, Homan Elementary School
	(effective August 11, 2017).
	II. Classified Reductions in Force:
	A. Reductions in Force:
	1. Denise Kelley, Instructional Tech Assistant, Grimmer Middle School
	(effective May 30, 2017).
	2. Debra Bosak, Title 1 Tutor, Homan Elementary School
	(effective May 30, 2017).
	3. Rebecca Moore, Title I Tutor, Homan Elementary School
	(effective May 30, 2017).
	4. Joanna Steapleton, Title I Tutor, Protsman Elementary School
	(effective May 30, 2017).
	5. Marcie Ruzas, Title I Tutor, Grimmer Middle School/Protsman Elementary School
	(effective May 30, 2017).
	6. Michael Peters, Paraprofessional, Clark Middle School
	(effective May 30, 2017).
	7. Stephanie Fultz, Instructional Tech Assistant, Clark Middle School
	(effective May 30, 2017).
	III. Certified Extracurricular Appointments, Resignations and Non-Renewals:
	A. Appointments:
	1. Bob Gustas, International Thespian Society Sponsor/Lake Central High School
	1. Bob Gustas, mermanoma Thespiral Society Sponson/Lake Central High School

2. Morgan Kleinaman, Girls Cross Country Head Coach/Lake Central High School

(effective for the 2017-2018 school year).

Lake Central High School

KAY TRAPP BOARD ROOM - Enter Door E

8400 Wicker Avenue, St. John, Indiana 46373

Monday, June 19, 2017 at 7:30 p.m.

- (effective for the 2017-2018 school year).
- 3. Brittany Perry, Science Fair Sponsor and Student Council Sponsor/Watson Elementary School (effective for the 2017-2018 school year).
- 4. Lynn Puzey, Third Grade Choir/Watson Elementary School (effective for the 2017-2018 school year).
- 5. Ron Fredrick, Girls Head Track Coach/Lake Central High School (effective for the 2017-2018 school year).
- 6. Genna Noel, Assistant Girls Soccer Coach/Lake Central High School (effective for the 2017-2018 school year).
- 7. Ashley Kline, Dollars for Scholars/Lake Central High School (effective for the 2017-2018 school year).
- B. Resignations:
 - 1. Amanda Pritt, Assistant Girls Track Coach/Lake Central High School (effective June 7, 2017).
- C. Non-Renewals:
 - 1. Jose Delgado, Assistant Girls Soccer Coach/Lake Central High School (effective for the 2017-2018 school year).
- IV. Classified Extracurricular Resignations and Appointments:
 - A. Resignations:
 - 1. Chris Tinberg, JV Volleyball Coach/Lake Central High School (effective June 6, 2017).
 - B. Appointments:
 - 1. Matthew Clark, Varsity Head Volleyball Coach/Lake Central High School (effective for the 2017-2018 school year).
- V. West Lake

Classified Appointments, Retirements, Resignations and Change of Hours:

- A. Appointments:
 - 1. Mandy Buckman (Crown Point), Educational Diagnostician, Lake Central High School and Elementary Schools (effective August 14, 2017).
- B. Retirements:
 - 1. Carole Kozlowski, Paraprofessional, West Lake/TAP (effective June 7, 2017; 18 years of dedicated service).
- C. Resignations:
 - 1. Susan Likander, Paraprofessional, West Lake/Clark Middle School (effective June 15, 2017).
 - 2. Phoebe Wagner, Paraprofessional, West Lake/Homan Elementary School (effective June 8, 2017.
 - 3. Leslie Truman, Paraprofessional, West Lake/Wilbur Wright Middle School (effective June 12, 2017).
- D. Change of Hours:
 - 1. Amber Gurley Junkin, Paraprofessional, West Lake/Watson Elementary School (decreasing to 4 days a week effective August 14, 2017).
 - 2. Colleen Boender, Paraprofessional, West Lake/Watson Elementary School (decreasing to 4 days a week effective August 14, 2017).
 - 3. Maria Flores, Paraprofessional, West Lake/Watson Elementary School (decreasing to 4 days a week effective August 14, 2017).
 - 4. Vanessa Swotash, Paraprofessional, West Lake/Watson Elementary School (decreasing to 4 days a week effective August 14, 2017).
 - 5. Anna Maria Santiago, Paraprofessional, West Lake/Watson Elementary School (decreasing to 4 days a week effective August 14, 2017).
 - 6. Karen Simnick, Paraprofessional, West Lake/Watson Elementary School (decreasing to 4 days a week effective August 14, 2017).

Lake Central High School KAY TRAPP BOARD ROOM – Enter Door E 8400 Wicker Avenue, St. John, Indiana 46373 Monday, June 19, 2017 at 7:30 p.m.

- 7. Denea Skufakiss, Paraprofessional, West Lake/Bibich Elementary School (from half-time to full time paraprofessional effective August 14, 2017).
- VI. Approval of Lake Central School Corporation Substitute Staff Appointments and Terminations Refer to list of substitutes hired and terminated from May 11, 2017 To June 14, 2017.
 - Don Bacso moved to approve the Revised Personnel Recommendations. Cindy Sues seconded the motion. Motion carried.
- 2. Spring Sports Review Chris Enyeart

Lake Central Athletics Spring Season Review 2017

Spring Student-Athlete Participants

Total Numbers

- Girls = 115
- Boys = 138
- Unified Track = 20
- TOTAL→ 273

Note: 115 Spring Sport student-athletes achieved Scholar Athlete Status by maintaining a 3.66 GPA or higher.

LAKE CENTRAL SCHOOL CORPORATION **Lake Central High School** KAY TRAPP BOARD ROOM - Enter Door E 8400 Wicker Avenue, St. John, Indiana 46373 Monday, June 19, 2017 at 7:30 p.m.

Duneland Athletic Conference

GIRLS

- Softball- 2nd
- Tennis- Tied for 2nd
- Track- 3rd
- All-Sport-3rd

- Baseball- 3rd
- Golf- 4th
- Track- 4th
- All-Sport-3rd

IHSAA Post-Season Results-Boys

- · Boys Baseball won Sectional and lost in **Regional Semi-Finals**
- Boys Golf Advanced to Regional meet
- Boys Track Tony Pavloski in the 100 and 200 meter dash qualified for the IHSAA State Meet and the 4 x 100 relay of Josh Benson, Keon Sellers, Tony Pavloski and Anthony Giles finished 5th with a time of 42.01.

IHSAA Post-Season Results-Girls

- Girls Softball lost in the sectionals finals
- Girls Tennis won Sectional and lost in Regional Championship.
- Girls Track 4 x 800 relay and Destiny Washington in the 110 and 300 hurdles advanced to the IHSAA State Meet

LAKE CENTRAL SCHOOL CORPORATION Lake Central High School KAY TRAPP BOARD ROOM – Enter Door E 8400 Wicker Avenue, St. John, Indiana 46373 Monday, June 19, 2017 at 7:30 p.m.

INCOME Gate Receipts = \$16,721.00 Tournament Fees = \$9,476.38 Season Passes = \$250.00 Fundraiser/Fees = \$86,717.90 TOTAL→ \$113,165.25 **EXPENSES** Game Workers = \$3,770.00 Officials = \$6,621.00 Field/Facility Maintenance = \$1619.77 Johnny on the Spot= \$1307.00 Equipment/Team Gear = \$76,386.98 • Miscellaneous = \$6,624.31 (office, tickets, programs, seniors, awards, coach fees, hotels, press box...etc.) Unified Track =\$3,000 .00 (coaches salary) Spring Banquet = \$7,420 TOTAL→ \$106,749.06 Don Bacso commented that the fundraising adds a lot. Howard Marshall offered congratulations to all on a successful spring season. Janice Malchow is happy to see the added gymnastics area here. Janice Malchow asked how it is determined who hosts regionals, sectionals, etc. Howard Marshall asked if the reason we do not host baseball is due to the lack of lights and if so, is it feasible to bring them in. Janice Malchow asked if the town baseball dovetails into our programs. 3. Athletic Booster Club Donation – **Action Required** Cindy Sues moved to approve the Athletic Booster Club Donation of \$25,000. Howard Marshall seconded the motion. Motion carried.

Howard Marshall moved to approve the professional leave requests of Sean Begley, Kendal Smith, Julie Moore and Cynthia Dimopoulos. Don Bacso

Director of Primary Education – Theresa Schoon

Director of Secondary Education – Sarah Castaneda

1. Professional Leave Requests – Action Required

seconded the motion. Motion carried.

C.

D.

Lake Central High School

KAY TRAPP BOARD ROOM – Enter Door E

8400 Wicker Avenue, St. John, Indiana 46373 Monday, June 19, 2017 at 7:30 p.m.

	E.	Director of Special Education – <i>Becky Gromala</i>
		1. Professional Leave Request – Action Required
		 Cindy Sues moved to approve the professional leave request of Barb Kepchar.
		Howard Marshall seconded the motion. Motion carried.
	F.	Director of Facilities – <i>Bill Ledyard</i>
		1. Award and execute Change Order #01 to Gough Inc., for LCSC Salt Storage Building -
		Action Required
		 Howard Marshall moved to award and execute Change Order #01 to Gough Inc.,
		for LCSC Salt Storage Building. Don Bacso seconded the motion. Motion
		carried.
		 Janice Malchow asked what was wrong with the soil.
		Cindy Sues asked about the abandoned fuel tank.
	G.	Director of Technology – Rick Moreno
	H.	Director of Business Services – Rob James
VIII	Pub	lic Comments– Janice Malchow
		• There were none.
IX	Boa	rd Comments and Consideration of Future Agenda Items – <i>Janice Malchow</i>
		Howard Marshall: Happy Summer!
		• Janice Malchow: Loved the High Ability Program evaluation. Would like to see an
		update on the next phase as a future agenda item.
		• Janice Malchow asked what is happening with the Tower.
X	Boa	rd Calendar of Future Activities – Dr. Veracco
		• Next Meeting is on July 10 th .
		 Happy 4th of July
VI	A di	overment Janice Malekov. Action Degrined
XI	Auj	ournment – Janice Malchow – Action Required
		• Don Bacso moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:10 pm. Cindy Sues seconded the motion. Motion carried.
		motion. Motion carried.
1		of the June 19, 2017 School Board Meeting were approved and adopted by the Board of School
Trus	stees a	at the July 10, 2017 School Board Meeting.
		Janice Malchow, President
	AT	TEST:
		Sandy Lessentine, Secretary

LAKE CENTRAL SCHOOL CORPORATION Lake Central High School KAY TRAPP BOARD ROOM – Enter Door E 8400 Wicker Avenue, St. John, Indiana 46373 Monday, June 19, 2017 at 7:30 p.m.

Г	
\vdash	III
	///